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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their directors’ report and the unaudited consolidated financial statements for King’s Cross
Central General Partner Limited (“the Company™) for the year ended 31 March 2623.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies within Part 15
of the Companies Act 2006. Under section 1A of FRS 102 (applicable to small companies), consolidation is not
required. However, the Company has voluntarily prepared consolidated financial statements. See accounting
policy note 1{b) for details on the basis of consolidation.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company is to act as the General Partner of the King’s Cross Central Limited
Partnership {(“K.CCLP”") (Company number: LP012617). No change in the Company’s activities is anticipated.

Dividends

No dividends were declared or paid during the current or preceding year.

Directors

The directors who held office during the vyear, and at the date of signature of the financial statements, were as
follows:

J Bednall

P R Clark

Sir D C Clementi {Chairman)

N C Deacon

R M Evans*

C L McCenville

N P Searl (alternate director)

C M Taylor

K A Wilman {appointed § May 2023)

C R A Darroch (resigned § May 2023)

S I Doughty (resigned 31 December 2022}

P G Freeman* (resigned 4 November 2022)

M B Lightbound (alternate director, resigned 4 November 2022)

The individuals marked with an asterisk held Ordinary shares indirectly via their indirect interests in Argent King’s
Cross Nominee Limited.

Going concern

The directors have reasonable expectations that the Group (as defined on page 5) and Company have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of at least twelve months
from the date of approval of these financial statements. Accordingly, the directors continue to adopt a going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements.

Auditor

The Company is entitled to the exemption from the audit requirement contained in section 477 of the Companies
Act 2006 for the year ended 31 March 2023. No member of the company has deposited a notice, pursuant to section
476, requiring an audit of these financial statements.

Sir David Clementi

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board
16 November 2023
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year end 31 March 2023

Rental income
Property overheads

Revenue from trading property
Other revenue
Cost of sales

GROSS PROFIT

Administrative expenses
Other income

OPERATING PROFIT

Revaluation of investment properties
Profit/(loss) from investments

Profit on disposal of investment properties
Fair value movement of financial instruments
Finance income

Finance costs

(LOSSYPROFIT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ttems that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSSYINCOME

All activities during the current year and prior period are derived from continuing operations.

The notes set out on pages 5 to 20 form part of these financial statements.

Nore

16

16

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£ £
96,707 93,421
(4,499 (2,934)
92,208 90,487
5,704 22,225
41,519 33,969
(53,070) (53,192)
86,361 93,489
(15,620) {14,055)
920 833
71,661 80,267
(89,979) 140,833
324 (1,541
. 4,778
2,011 35,793
1,539 119
(48,855) (32,967}
(63,299 227,282
(961) 2,120
(62,260) 229,402
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2023

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
investment property

Invesiment property in the course of develapment

Property, plant and equipment
Other financial assets
Investment 1n associates

Unlisted investment

Receivables greater than one year

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventory

Trade and other receivables
Cash at bank

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Payments on account

Loans to Parthers of KCCLP

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

[nitial Committed Advances (ICAs)
Other financial Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital

Profit and loss account
Hedging reserve

Equity attributable to parent entity shareholders

Minority interest

TOTAL EQUITY

Note

12
14

12

4

16

i6

31 March 2023

£ £
2,194,851
287,697

2,482,548

4,827

26,237

135,443

485

12,920

266l 460
173,322
178,635
129,114

481,071

3,143,531
83,2401
48,005
31.569
213,612

176,516
936
52,709
1,175,365

1229010

1.605,526

1,538,005
2011
1,537,054

1,539,065

(1,060)

1,538,005

The notes set out on pages 5 to 20 form part of these financial statements.
These financial statements on pages 2 to 20 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on.

Sir David Clementi
Chairman

31 March 2022

£ £
2,314,431
170,717
2,485,148
4337
2202
136,811
168
12,486
2,641,152
111,891
131277
124,165
367,333
3,008,483
84.574
273,378
18,433
213612
589,997
17,327
51,358
747538
816223
1,406,220
1,602,265
2,011
1,600,194
961
1,603,166
(901)
1,602,265

16 November 2023

Company number: 6387691
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2023

Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£ £
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
[nvestment 4 16 16
16 16
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 10 2.003 2,003
Cash at bank - -
2.003 2,003
TOTAL ASSETS 2,019 2,019
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 1z 8 8
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8 8
NET ASSETS 2,011 2,011
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 16 2,011 2011
TOTAL EQUITY 2,011 2,011

The notes set out on pages 5 to 20 form part of these financial statements.

The company is entitled to the exemptien from the audit requirement contained in section 477 of the Companies Act
2006 for the year ended 31 March 2023. No member of the company has deposited a notice, pursuant to section 476,
requiring an audit of these financial statements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring that the company keeps accounting records which comply
with section 386 of the Act and for preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company as at the end of the financial period and of its results for the financial period in accordance with the
requirements of sections 394 and 395 and which otherwise comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
relating to financial statements, so far as applicable to the company.

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies’ subject to the small
companies’ regime.

Under section 1A of FRS 102 (applicable to small companies), consolidation is not required. However, the Company
has voluntarily prepared consolidated financial staternents.

The Company generated a profit of £Nil (2022: £Nil) for the year. The Company has not disclosed its individual profit
and loss account in accordance with the exemption afforded by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

These financial statements (Company No: 6387691) were approved by the Board on. 16 November 2023

Signed on behalf of the Board

Sir David Clementi
Chairman
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

NOTFES TO THF. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 March 2023

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company is a privaie company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is
4 Stable Street, London, N1C 4AB.The consolidaled financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
comprise the Company and all of its subsidiaries including the proportionally consolidated results of KCCLP.

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with section 1A of FRS 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”™ (“FRS 102”) and the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are presented in £ sterling, on the historical cost basis, other than the revaluation
of investment properties and certain financial instruments.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied to the results, assets, liabilities and cash flows of
the Company and Group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group (as defined below) for the year ended 31 March 2023
comprise the Company and its non-dormant subsidiaries, King’s Cross Central Limited Partnership
(“KCCLP™), KC (B2&B4) GP Limited (“B2B4”), KC Green GP Limited (“KC Green”), KC 3&4 PS GP
Limited (*3/4 PS”), KC (SPH) Limited GP Limited (“KC (SPH) "}, KC Cadence GP Limited (**Cadence™),
KC R8 GP Limited (“R8 GP”), KC §3 GP Limited (“S3 GP”"y and KC $4 GP Limited (“S4 GP”), together
the “Group™.

As the General Partner of KCCLP, and holding an 0.08% share in it, the Company is considered to have
control over this entity. Control exists when the directors have the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the
Company takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable. The acquisition
date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. The accounts of a subsidiary are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control comtnences until the date that control
ceases.

The directors consider the financial statements would not give a true and fair view of the assets and
liabilities and income and expenditure if KCCLP were to be fully consolidated. Therefore, they have taken
advantage of the provisions under section 404 (5) of the Companies Act 2006 and have proportionalty
consolidated its interest in KCCLP, in order for the financial statements to give a true and fair view.

All financial statement are made up to 31 March 2023, It has not been necessary to make any adjustments
to the financial statements of the subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used in line with those used
by other members of the group. All intra-group transactions, balances between group companies are
eliminated on consolidation.

If the financial statements of KCCLP were fully consolidated using 0.08% sharehelding, the Group’s
financial statements would change by the following amounts:

2023 2022

£ £

{Loss)/profit for the year (76,653,628) 243,730,859
Minority interest in the profit and loss account 76,653,628 (243,730,859)

Profit attributable to shareholders of the parent entity - -
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at 31 March 2023

(c)

{d)

(e)

2023 2022

£ £

Investment properties 3,100,702,452  3.103.949,852
Net current assets and other non-current assets 451,124,812 10.162.863
Long term borrowings (1.535.033,990) (1.019,463,776)
Net assets 2.016,793.274  2,094,648,939
Minority interest {2,016,793,274) (2,094,648,939)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent entity - -

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the directors to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilitics that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the estimate affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future
periods. Judgements made by the directors in the application of FRS102 that have a significant impact
on the financial statements, primarily relate to the carrying value of investment property and investment
property in the course of development. The directors have had regard to a valuation prepared by an
independent vaiuer when making this judgement.

Gaing concern

The Directors consider that the Company will be able to meet all of its current liabilities as they fall due
for at least the twelve months following the date of these financial statements. The Directors therefore
conclude that the Company has adequate resources to continue in existence for the foreseeable future and
thus it is appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis.

Investment property in the course of development
Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property is classified as
investment property in the course of development. The Group adopts the valuation model under FRS102.

All costs directly associated with the purchase and construction of a property and all subsequent capital
expenditure on the development qualify as acquisition costs and are capitalised.

When it is determined that a plot will be developed and then sold, the land concerned, and associated
costs are transferred to inventoty at fair value at the date of transfer. This is deemed to be the earlier of
a meaningful commencement of building works or a binding sale agreement.

A disposal of investment property is recognised when the Group has transferred the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the buyer and it no longer retains control or has managerial involvement in the
investment property. Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit and
loss.

Refer to note 4 for details of measurement of fair value,
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at 31 March 2023

(H

(g)

(h)

()

@

(k)

M

Investment property
Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation

or for both. Investment properties are stated at fair value.

An external independent valuer, having an appropriate recognised professional qualification and recent
experience in the location and category of property being valued, values the portfolio each quarter. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of investment property excludes accrued operating lease income arising from the
smoothing of rental income over the lease term because the Group recognises this as a separate asset.

Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures and fittings are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged to profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets concerned, which is
considered to be three years for all of the Group’s fixtures and fittings capitalised to date, apart from long-
life plant and machinery, which is depreciated over 20 years.

Investments in associate

Investments in associate are recognised at fair value through profit and loss. The investment is measured
initially at its transaction price, and then remeasured to fair value each reporting date. Changes in fair
value are recognised are recognised through profit or loss.

The fair value of the subsidiaries’ investment in its Limited Partnership (as detailed in note 7) is estimated
to be equal to the subsidiary’s share of the net asset value (“NAV"") of the Limited Partnership, as at the
statement of financial position date. The value assigned to the investment is based upon available
information and does not necessarily represent amounts which might be ultimately realised.

The investment in the Limited Partnership is valued based on the latest available informatien for the
Limited Partnership. The subsidiaries review the details of the reported information obtained from the
Limited Partnership and considers:

(a) the liquidity of the Limited Partnership or its underlying investments; and

{(b) the value date of the net asset value ("NAV”) provided.

If necessary, the Subsidiaries will make adjustments to the NAV of the Limited Partnership to obtain the
best estimate of fair value.

[nvestments in associate is classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Inventory

Inventory is shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs include interest and other finance
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and those necessary to make the sale.

Development costs

Development costs incurred before land is acquired and projects commence are capitalised if it is
sufficiently probable that the project will go ahead. They are initially recognised at cost and then allocated
to the project as inventory or investment property on its commencement. The costs are written off if the
project is no longer sufficiently probable to proceed or is cancelled.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and then subsequently at amortised cost
less impairment losses (see accounting policy 1(1).

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash balances and call deposits.
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at 31 March 2023

(m)

(n)

(0}

(r)

Impairment
Carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss.

The recoverable amount of the Group’s receivables is calculated at the present value of expected future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these financial assets). Receivables with a short duration are not discounted. An
impairment loss in respect of a receivable is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and then subsequently at amortised cost.

Performance Fees payable to Argent (King’s Cross) Limited (the *“Asset Manager™), based on the
attainment of specific events are accrued for when the fees are earned.

Interest-bearing borrowings, derivative financial instruments and cash flow hedges

[nterest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. Where derivatives qualify for hedge
accounting, recognition of any resuitant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged. The
gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit and loss unless hedge
accounting is adopted.

The Group takes out interest rate swaps and interest rate caps which are designated as cash flows hedges,
so the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in the
hedging reserve via other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised
immediately in profit and loss.

Hedges are included at valuations obtained from the counterparty of the hedge.

Revenue

Rent from investment properties leased under operating leases is recognised in profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Any lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral
part of the total rental income.

Revenue (net of VAT) from the sale of properties from inventory is recognised in profit and loss when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the buyer. Revenue for services
rendered (such as construction services and project management fees) is recognised in profit and loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion
is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed. No income is recognised if there are significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or the associated costs.
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at 31 March 2023

(qQ Expenses
Property operating expenses and service costs for service contracts including Performance and Milestone
Payments (see note 1{m)} are expensed as earned.
(r) Finance costs
All finance costs incurred in relation to investment properties and investment properties in the course of
construction are expensed in the profit and loss.
{(s) Taxation
Current tax, including UK corporation tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid {(or recovered)
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred taxation is provided in full on timing differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet
date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they
crystallise based on current tax rates and law. Timing differences arise from the inclusion of items of
income and expenditure in taxation computations in periods different from those in which they are
included in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as
more likely than not they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
2 STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS Group
2023 2022
£ £
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group had 13
direct employees (31 March 2022: 15 direct employees):
Chairman’s fees 112 2
Other payroll costs, including National Insurance 126 177
238 289
3 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Group
2023 2022
£ £
Operating profit is stated after charging:
Depreciation 322 323
Auditor’s remuneration - audit 178 139
Auditot’s remuneration - other assurance 10 9

related services
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

NOTES TOQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at 31 March 2023

4 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES Company
2023 2022

£ £

King’s Cross Central Limited Partnership
KC (B2&B4) GP Limited

KC Green GP Limited

KC 3&4 PS GP Limited

KC (SPH) Limited GP Limited

KC Cadence GP Limited

KC {R8) GP Limited

KC (83) GP Limited

KC (54) GP Limited

— i — — — pad OO
— kOO

At end of the vear I6 16
2023 2022

£ £

At beginning of the year 16 14

Additions i 5

At end of the year 16 16

The investment in Subsidiaries represents the Company’s 0.08% interest in KCCLP and 100% interest in
B2&B4, KC Green, 3/4 PS, KC (SPH), Cadence, R8, S3, and S4 GPs.

10
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at 31 March 2023

Subsidiary undertakings

The following were subsidiary undertakings of the Company:

Name Proportion of Nature of
ownership business
interest

KCC Nominee 1 Limited 1002 Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (WTS) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (WTS) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (T5) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (T3) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (J) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (J) Limited 100%% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (P2) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (P2) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 {(Q1) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (Q1) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (R1) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (R1) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (R6) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (R6) 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee | {R3/R6) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (R3/R6) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 {B3) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 {B3) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 {R5N) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (R5N) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (P1l) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 {P1) Limited 100% Holding company
King’s Cross Events Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 {B5) Limited 100% Helding company
KCC Nominee 2 (B5} Limited 100% Helding company
KC (B2&B4) GP Limited 100% Helding company
KCC Nominee | (B2} Limited 100% Helding company
KCC Nominee 2(B2} Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (B4} Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (B4} Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (T1) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (T1) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (R2) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (R2} Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (MGS) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (MGS) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee | (Coal Drops) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (Coal Drops) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (GG) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (GG) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (G1Pav) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (G1Pav) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (B6) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (B6) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (N1) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (N1) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (N1 Resi) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominge 2 (N1 Resi) Limited 100% Holding company

KCC Nominee 1 (R7) Limited 100% Holding company
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King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at 31 March 2023

KCC Nominee 2 (R7) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (S1) Limited 160% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (S1) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (S2) Limited 100% Hoelding company
KCC Nominee 2 (S2) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 {FC) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (FC) Limited 100% Holding company
R3/R6 Manco Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (T2/T3) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (T2/T3) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1| (S5) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (S5) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (R8) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (R8) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee | (83) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (S3) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1 (Q2) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (Q2) Limited 100% Holding company
KCC Nominee 1| (84) Limited 104% Holding company
KCC Nominee 2 (S4) Limited 100% Holding company
Gasholders Manco Limited 100% Holding company
Cadence Manco Limited 100% Holding company
S4 Manco Limited 100% Holding company
KC Green GP Limited 100% Helding company
KC Green Holdco Limited 100% Holding company
KC3&4PS GP Limited 100% Holding company
KC 3&4PS Holdco Limited 100% Holding company
KC (SPH) GP Limited 100% Holding company
KC (SPH) Holdco Limited 100% Holding company
KC Cadence GP Limited 100% Holding company
KC Cadence Holdco Limited 100% Holding company
KC (R8) GP Limited 100% Holding company
KC (R8) Holdce Limited 100% Holding company
KC (83} GP Limited 100% Holding company
KC {S3) Holdco Limited 100% Holding company
KC (84) GP Limited 100% Holding company
KC (54) Holdco Limited 100% Holding company

All subsidiaries are incorporated in the United Kingdom and have a registered address of 4 Stable Street,
London N1C 4AB.

5 Group

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2023 2022

£ £

At beginning of the year 2,314431 2,019,525

Additions 5,892 18,162

Transfer from investment property in the course of development - 196,200

Revaluation (125,472) 80,544

At end of the year 2,194,851 2,314,431
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at 31 March 2023

INVESTMENT PROPERTY IN THE
COURSLC O DEVELGIPMENT

2023 2022

£ £

At beginning of the year 170,717 261,984
Additions at cost during the year 81,487 68,239
Disposals - (10,000)
Transferred to inventory - (13,593)
Transfer to investment properties - (196,200)
Revaluation 35,493 60,289
At end of the year 287,697 170,717

The additions during the year represent payments to contractors for construction work undertaken to date and fees
paid to both third party consultants and the Asset Manager.

MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUE

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of investment property was determined by an external independent property valuer, having
appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the
property being valued. The independent valuer provides the fair value of the Partnership’s investment property
portfolio every three months.

The fair value measurement for investment property and investment property in the course of development is
£3,103 million (0.08% being £2.5 million) (2022: £3,106 million (0.08% being £2.5 million)) has been categorised
as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

Level 3 fuir value
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for Level 3 fair

values:
[nvestment property in
Investment the course of
property development
£ £
Balance at 31 March 2022 2,314,431 170,717
Other movements — additions and transfers 5,892 81,487
Changes in fair value (unrealised) (125,472) 35,493
Balance at 31 March 2023 2,194,851 287,697
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as at 31 March 2023

‘aluation technique and significant observable inputs:

The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment property and

investmeat property in the course of development, as well as the significant observable inputs used.

Property type:

Completed
properties held
for investment

Valuation
fechnique:

Income
capitalisation

Significant observable inputs:

Commercial office rent and
retail rental value of £20 to
£93 psf.

Equivalent yields of 3.75%
to 5.00%.

Inter-relationship between observable
inputs and fair value measurement:

The estimated fair value would

increase/(decrease) if:

+ expected market rental growth is
higher/(lower)

* yields are lower/(higher).

Investment Residual land  Estimated rental values of The estimated fair value would
property valuation £20 to £93 psf. increase/(decrease) if:
(including iand) Equivalent yields of 3.75% s expected market rental growth is
in the course of to 5.00%. higher/(lower)
development * yields are lower/(higher)
6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group
2023 2022
£ £
COST
At beginning of the year 10,320 8,803
Additions 812 1,517
At end of the year 11,132 10,320
DEPRECIATION
At beginning of the year (5.983) (5,660)
During the year (322) (323)
At end of the year (6,305) (5,983)
Net book vaiue at 31 March 4,827 4,337
7 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES Group
2023 2022
£ £

At 1 April 136,811 103,127
Movement in the year (1,368) 33,684
At 31 March 135,443 136,811
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The investment in associates represents a 0.01% interest in each of KC Green Limited Partnership (partnership
no. LP019657), KC 3&4 PS Limited Partnership (partnership no. LP020299), KC (B2&B4) Limited
Partnership (partnership no. LP015093), KC (SPH) Limited Partnership (partnership no. LP020656), KC
Cadence Limited Partnership (partnership no. LP020954), KC R8 Limited Partnership (partnership no.
LP021525), KC S3 Limited Partnership (partnership no. LP021844) and KC S4 Limited Partnership
(partnership no. LP021992) registered in England under the Limited Partnership Act 1907, whose principal
activities is the development and investment within the King’s Cross Estate.

KC (B2&B4) GP Limited (“B2B4™), KC Green GP Limited (“KC Green™), KC 3&4 PS GP Limited (*3/4
PS™), KC (SPH) Limited GP Limited (“KC (SPH) ™), KC Cadence GP Limited (“Cadence”), KC R8 GP
Limited (“R8), KC 83 GP Limited (“S3™) and KC 5S4 GP Limited (“S4”) (together “the GP’s”) are deemed to
have significant influence over their respective Limited Parinership as noted above, and this investment is
recognised as an investment in associate. This investment is accounted for in line with Section 14 Investments
in Associates, adopting the fair value through profit and loss accounting methoed in the subsidiary’s financial
statements.

The fair value of the GP’s investment in its respective Limited Partnership is based on the GP’s share of the
net asset value of the Limited Partnership. With the absence of a quoted market, this is deemed an appropriate
and recognised valuation basis for the GP’s interest in its Limited Partnership.

] UNLISTED INVESTMENT Group
2023 2022
£ £
Unlisted equity investment 485 168

Movement in investment:

Group
£
COST
At 1 April 2022 168
Additions 317
At 31 March 2023 485
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2022 -
[mpairment losses -
At 31 March 2023 -
Net book value at 31 March 2023 485
Net book value at 31 March 2022 168
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INVENTORY

At beginning of the year
Additions

Interest costs capitalised
Disposals during the vear

Transferred from investment property in the course of development

(note 5)

At end of the year

As at 31 March 2023, all inventory was held at historic cost, or deemed cost being the fair value at the date of

Group
2023 2022
£ £
111,891 61,782
67,013 54,525
2,706 1,412
(8,288)  (19,423)
- 13,595
173,322 111,891

transfer from investment property, with no provisions. An impairment assessment was carried out. Although the
costs are lower than the Fair Value, the Net Realisable Value (which is calculated on an individual unit basis
rather than on a plot level) is greater than the historic cost and therefore, no impairment was made in the year.
Inventory has been valued by an independent valuer at a gross value of £212.2 million (0.08% being £169,800)

(2022: £129.6 million (0.08% being £103,700)).

TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables

Escrow deposits and retentions
HMRC — Value Added Tax
Other receivables

Accrued rental income

Development costs

Development costs are those capitalised in respect of St Pancras Hospital project.

RECEIVABLES DUE IN MORE THAN
ONE YEAR

Retentions
Accrued income

At end of the year

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
7,306 7,429
29,749 12,202 ~ -
746 1,495 ~ -
3,028 8,254 2,003 2,003
131,193 98,734 - -
172,022 128,114 2,003 2,003
6.613 3,163 - -
178,635 131,277 2,003 2,003
Group

2023 2022

4,000 4,000

8,920 8,486

12,920 12,486
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12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
CURRENT £ £ £ £
Fees payable to the Asset Manager 314 12,781 - -
Other payables and accruals 82,926 71,793 3 8
83,240 84,574 8 ]
Group
2023 2022
£ £
NON-CURRENT
Fees payable to the Asset Manager - 16,108
Other 936 1,219
936 17,327
13 INITIAL COMMITTED ADVANCES (ICAs) (CONSOLIDATED)
2023 2022
£ £
Opening at 1 April 51,358 50,041
Interest 1,351 1317
Balance at 31 March 52,709 51,358

Each year until maturity, the ICAs” revalued liability will be increased so at their maturity in December
2027 the value held in the balance sheet will have accreted to their face value amount payable of £74.5
million (0.08% being £59,638). Should the ICAs be redeemed prior to December 2027, the amount payable
will be £74.5 million (0.08% being £59,638) irrespective of the date of repayment.

14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Group
2023 2022
£ £

Other financial assets:
Interest rate cap 26,2537 2,202
Other financial liabilities:
CURRENT
Bank debt 48,141 274,336

Less: unamortised loan arrangemeitt fees
Fair value of derivatives

(46) (478)
- (480)

48,095 273,378

17



DocuSign Envelope |D: BBFEF837-0B6D-4945-9CA0-AFD844384B82

King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

as at 31 March 2023

15

16

NON-CURRENT
Bank debt

Less: unamortised loan arrangement fees

Fair value of derivatives

1,185,742 753,118
(10,377) (5,098)
§ (482)
1,175,365 747,538

The bank debt and other financial liabilities are all secured over investment property and inventory with a
carrying amount of £3,320 million (0.08% being £2.656 million) (2022: £3,246 millicn (0.08% being £2.597

million)).

PAYMENTS ON ACCOUNT

Deposits received from purchasers of apartments

Rental deposits held

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

At 1 April 2022

Retained profit for the financial
year

Minority interest

Movement in hedging reserve

At 31 March 2023

Group
2023 2022
£ £
26,603 12,912
4,966 5,521
31,569 18,433
Group
Called up Profit and Hedging Minority
share  loss account reserve interest Total
capital £ £ £ £
£
2,011 1,600,194 961 (901) 1,602,265
(63,299) - - (63,299)
159 - (159) -
- (561) - (961)
2,011 1,537,054 - (1,060} 1,538,005
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Company
Called up Profit and Hedging Minority

share capital  loss account reserve interest Total

£ £ £ £ £

At | April 2022 2,011 - - - 2,011
Retained profit for the financial - - - - -

year

At 31 March 2023 2,011 - - - 2,011

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Fair values

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated at the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is material.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is estimated at its carrying amount where the cash is
repayable on demand. Where cash is not repayable on demand, then the fair value is estimated at
the fair present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the balance
sheet date.

The fair value of trade and other payables is estimated at the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is material.

Fair value of interest-bearing leans which after initial recognition is determined for disclosure
purposes only, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

Financial risk management

There are no allowances for bad or doubtful debts within trade receivables and all material amounts
have been collected since 31 March 2023.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer, or counterparty, to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from receivables from third parties.

The carrying amount of trade receivables and cash held at banks represent the maximum credit
exposure. Accordingly, the maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March 2023 for KCCLP was
£380.6 million (0.08% being £304,500) (2022: £313.6 million (0.08% being £250,900)). KCCLP’s
consolidated cash balance of £161.3 million (0.08% being £129,000) (2022: £155.2 million (0.08%
being £124,200)) is deposited with UK clearing banks, all with credit ratings from Moady’s of
BAAZ or above.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due, other than credit provided by suppliers, all of which were payable (and were paid) within six
weeks of the period end. The Asset Manager (note 14) reports regularly to the Board on the forecast
expenditure and regularly provides detailed cash flow projections to the Board to ensure that the
Group does not commit itself to expenditure in excess of its available facilities.

Interest risk

The Group has interest rate swaps and caps to fix/limit the cost of the projected borrowing on the
secured term loans (note 11). A hedging reserve has been included.
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(d} Capital management

The Group uses a mixture of capital and available banking facilities (see note 11) to meet its
expenditure requirements.

(e) Sensitivity analysis

For the year ended 31 March 2023, a change in market interest rates would not have materially
affected the Group’s result because substantially all of the Group borrowings are subject to interest
rate hedging.

RELATED PARTIES

The Asset Manager is a wholly owned subsidiary of Argent King’s Cross GP LLP (“AKXGP LLP”) (formerly
Argent King’s Cross GP Limited), the general partner of the Argent King’s Cross Limited Partnership
(“AKXLP"), one of the Unitholders in King's Cross Central Property Trust, and in which the BT Pension
Scheme was the majority investor. The fees set out below have been either paid or are owed to the Asset
Manager, under the Asset Management Agreement dated 26 February 2021, between the Partnership’s general
partner, the Asset Manager and others. See note 12 for the amounts outstanding at the year end.

During the year, the Partnership paid £38,296 (2022: £26,080) in fees to the Asset Manager in relation to
Development and Asset Management Fees, Performance Fees, and the Interest on Performance Fees. At the
year end, the Partnership owed £9 (2022: £28,888). This balance is included in trade and other payables {note
12}.

In April 2021, Partnership granted a long-term lease of the Triangle plot at the north of the King’s Cross Estate
to AR Triangle Property LP, a related party by virtue of shared key management personnel. The minimum
payment the Partnership will receive for this disposal is £12,000. At the 31 March 2023 year end, the
Partnership has recognised the present value of this consideration at £8,920 in accrued income (see note 11).
OWNERSHIP

AustralianSuper PTY Limited holds 71.5% (2022: 70.0%) of the issued share capital of the Company, Britel
Fund Trustees Limited holds 23.6% (2022: 23.6%), Argent King’s Cross Limited Partnership holds 4.8%
(2022: 6.3%) and the Chairman holds 0.1% (2022: 0.1%).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no events or conditions since the year end date that indicate any adjustment would be required
to the financial statements.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND OBJECTIVES

King's Cross Central Limited Partnership (“KCCLP"} (“the Partnership”) is a Limited Partnership established on
29 November 2007 and registered in England under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The principal activity of
the Partnership and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) is the investment in and development of the King’s Cross mixed-
use scheme between and to the north of St Pancras International and King's Cross Stations. The Group’s objective
is 1o provide a long-term investment return to its Limited Partner by regenerating its land hotdings and so attract
a rich variety of residents. whilst producing an environment where people aspire to work, live and spend their

time.

BUSINESS REVIEW

KCCLP is a specialist investor in the King’s Cross/London’s NIC postcode that delivers high quality real estate
accommeodation and associated real estate services to its customers, The partnership capitalises on the critical mass
of real estate that it owns in the locality. uses its specialist expertise to deliver high quality destinations, provides
what customers want and subsequently seeks to drive relative financial outperformance.

King’s Cross s now firmly established as one of the most distinctive and lively places to live. work or visit in
London; as the final buildings in the masterplan are completed and the estate matures, it is our ambition that King’s
Cross continues to be a global exemplar of successful city regeneration. Due to complete in 2025, the 67-acre estate
has a distinctive sensc of piace and community. and blends commercial, retail. restaurants, bars and cafes.
residential. community. education and leisure accommodation all alongside one another.

During the year strong progress was made on site across the four remaining material development plots, with
building S3 recaching practical completion (PC) post year end in May 2023. the last remaining residential plots,
Cadence and Capelia, due to PC in Q4 2023 and Q1 2024 respectively and building R8 due to complete in FY25.
Planning for building F1. the last remaining plot on the main estate has now been submitted. and the partnership
continues to work on the scheme for the adjacent St Pancras Hospital (SPH) site alongside our partners for that
development. Camden & Islington NHS Foundation Trust. SPH has its own history and a different surrounding
communily, so the partnership has a responsibility to allow it to maintain and forge its own identify. Placemaking
and management strategics of SPH will therefore need to be considered on a micro local scale but also look for
opportunity to integrate, leverage and maximise the benefit from the King’s Cross Estate. Submission of a planning
application for the SPH scheme will take place during FY24,

The King’s Cross Estate was declared Carbon Neutral in 2021. Energy supplies, both gas and electricity. continue
to be from 100% renewable sources and we are on a pathway to become net zero.

The financial year ending 31 March 2023 was a year in which the macro dominated the micro. with a significant
rise in borrowing costs causing a freeze in investment markets and yields to rise. KCCLP was not immune to this,
with commercial vields across the Estate expanding by ¢30bps between September 2022 and March 2023,
uitimately ieading to a statutory loss for the year of £76.7m (2022: £243.9m profit). with the partaership profitabie
before revaluation in the year. Over the year ending March 2023 the external valuation increased in absolute terms
by 3.6%. driven by capex across the development plots. The biended Estate equivalent yield was 4.60% at the year-
end (2022: 4.28%). The valuation was supported by average ERV growth of 2.2%. which combined with the release
of developers profit across the remaining development plots on site and the continued rent frec burn ofY at plots
which completed in 2020 and 2021 mitigated much of the impact of the ¢ 30bps outward yicld shift noted above.

Accounting rent has increased by 3.5% to £121m, and contracted rents across the portfolio stand in excess of £150m.
A weighted average lease expiry of 10.6 years (2022: 114 years) continues to provide the partnership with certainty
over revenues in the coming years. The strength of tenant covenants right across the Estate has led 10 average rent
collections of over 97% across all sectors.

There have been further strong residential sales recognised in the year in addition to very buoyant pre-sales on
residential buildings under construction. As such the partnership has goed visibility over contracted residential
proceeds and associated profits due to be realised in the second half of 2023 and into 2024.

In August 2022, the Group successfully completed a new. single loan facility of £1.06bn which is secured by a
number of investments assets on the King’s Cross ¢state. The initial loan term is 2 years (extendable up to 3 years
at the borrower’s option only) with a capped all-in interest rate of 4.1% up to April 2024 and 5.85% from April to
Qctober 2024, and is secured on aftractive terms, thereby providing financing certainty and consolidating a number
of existing loans. The facility is fully hedged for the initial loan term. with interest rate caps put in place on both
the new and existing facilities during the year, becoming effective in light of subsequent rates rises. The structure
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and flexibility of the new loan underline the strength of the Estate as a sustainable investment and the quality of its
ownership and management.

This transaction has streamlined the Group’s financial arrangements and eliminated all financing expiries on
commercial assets in 2022 and 2023, with no commercial facility expiries across the whole debt portfolic now until
July 2026.

There are good levels of covenant headroom maintained across all debt facilities and net LTV stands at 40% (March
2022: 34%). The residential facilities expiring in 2023 and 2024 are fully covered by pre-sold apartments and will
be paid down immediately from first proceeds received.

RISKS AND UNCERTAEINTIES

The Partnership and the King's Cross scheme are subject to the inherent risks which face all major regeneration
projects, which are built out through one or more market cycles. Specific risks include office yields and rents.
construction inflation, the planning regime, occupier demand. availability of debt funding, interest and currency
fluctuations and the value of residential property in ¢central London.

The general risk environment in which the Partnership operates remained heightened over the course of the financial
year due to geopolitical and macroeconomic uncertainty. These circumstances have resuited in an often-changing
near-term operating environment.

FY23 saw challenging UK economic conditions and uncertainties. including the ongoing cost of living crisis and
war in Ukraine. The “mini-budget” in September 2022 caused significant matkel uncertainty, resulting in a fall in
the pound and an increase to both UK government borrowings and interest rates. Levels of market uncertainty and
volatility have reduced since Q4 2022 but the UK economic environment remains challenging with inflation
remaining at a near 40-year high and interest rates at 5% in fune 2023

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPls) - FINANCIAL

The following KPIs are used by maragement to monitor the finances of the group:

Definition and calculation method 2023 2022
Total return Total retum is the percentage increase =3.7% 13.3%
in the consolidated net asset position
of KCCLP
Net asset value per unit Net asset value per unit is the £12.78 £13.24
(properties at valuation)} consolidated net asset value divided
by the number of units held
Gross valuation (inc. inventory}  [s the total Cushman & Wakefield £3.479m £3,359m

(C&W) valuation of the Estate. The
gross valuation includes assets which
are refiected as inventory and carried
at cost in the statutory financial
statements.
Contracted renl Contracted rent is the sum of all £151.5m £151.6m
agreed contracted rent between
KCCLP and its tenants
Weighted average lease expiry 1s the average lease term remaining to 10.6 years {1.4 years
(incl. AFLs) first break. or expiry. across the
portfolic weighted by contracted
rental income (including rent-frees).
Net gearing Is the ratio of principle value of debt 40.4% 36.7%
drawn at 31 March 2023 to the gross
valuation plus cash at the same date.

"
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Partnership takes its responsibilities under Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 seriously and acts in good
faith to promote the success of the Parinership for the benefit of Shareholders, whilst having due regard to the
matters set out in section 172(1)a) to (f) of the Companies Act 2006. When making decisions, we consider the
interests of all our stakeholders, the long-term consequences of these decisions and our own reputation for high
standards of business coiduct. Examplées of how the Board considered 5172 matters in decisions this year can be

found throughout our strategic report and outlined below:

Explanation

Requirement
a) the likely consequences of
any decision in the long-term

The Board and key decision-making committees have taken this duty into
consideration when making key strategic decisions during the year.

The Board remains mindful that its strategic decisions can have both short- and
long-term implications for the Group and its stakeholders and these
implications are considered carefully.

b) the interests of the
partnership’s workforce;

We recognise our people (and the teams we work with) are fundamental to the
long-term success of our business. Their health, safety and welibeing is one of
our primary considerations in the way we operate and the support we provide
to them.

¢) the need (o foster the
partnership’s business
retationships with suppliers.
customers and others;

The Board has identified the partnership’s key stakeholders to be shareholders,
customers, suppliers, debt financiers and communities. We continue 10 engage
with al! through regular contact and ensuring we understand what is important
to them and reguiarly review the service we provide.

d) the impact of the
partnership’s operations on the
community and the
environment;

Sustainability, climate change and other ESG topics have been topics of
ongoing interest. We have a strong track record in ESG. further information
can be found in the energy and carbon report.

¢) the desirability of the
partnership maintaining
a reputation for high standards
of business conduct; and

We operate a robust internal control system with clear leadership supported
by a wide training end awareness programme. This system is coupled with a
clear corporate culture and set of values.

Policies on Standards of Behaviour. Anti-Money Laundering, Anti-Bribery
and Whistleblowing are all available.

f) the need to act fairly as
between members of the
partnership.

The Board is made up from representatives of our shareholders and we are in
regular communication.

STREAMLINE ENERGY AND CARBON REPORT

The Partnership complies with the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Director’s Report) Regulations 2013
and the Companies (Director’s Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report} Regulations
2018 and our approach to reporting is based on the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard

in line with the guidance on SECR.

Qur reporting period is for the financial year Ist April 2022 to 3[st March 2023, reporting all material GHG
emissions using “Tonnes of CO2 equivalent” (tCO2e) as the unit of measurement and reports energy use in kWh.
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Streamline Energy and Carbon Reporting Disclosure

Giobai anergy Scope 1 and 2 GHE emission dats for period: Q10272022 31/03/2623

Yonnes COze

FYz2/23 FY21/22  Vartance FY22/23 FY21/22  wvarance

Iocaﬁpn- -ctadton-  lacation- market- markert- market-
Emissions from based based based based bassd ased
Stope 1 (Fueicombust on in buildings) 17,483 15,853 ST 11,408 5,045 128%:
Scope 1 (Fuei combustan in mobrle and stac o giant) a7 87 Lo 87 87 S
Scope 2 \Electrcity) 1,549 1,511 8% 428 o L%
19,519 11,924
Company's chosen intensity metric: 0 e/2qM
£Y22/23 FY22/23
tocation- market- variance
pbased based
Emissions reporied per Gross INtesnai Area [Sghl 0.122 0.081 S51%
Scope 3 Global GHG emissicn data for peried: 5170442822 31/C3/20238
Emission from F¥22/23 FY21/02  Yar.ance
Waste % S5 397
Tenants energy use 2,782 232C BEEY
Underlying glcbal energy data for pericd: 2170252022 3178372023
Energy use (RWH) FY13/23 EV21:22  varnance
E ectr oy 10,076,545 3.718352C 1E%:
“enant E'ectriziny 14,387,327 13,101.52¢ 163
Natury: Gas 95,778.467 103,260,254 “T7e
fMobsle and Static Plant Fyel 326.257 326,257 £
120,568,596

Methodology

We have selected to report based on the financial control approach regarding Metropolitan King's Cross Limited
based on Metropolitan King’s Cross Limited being fully consclidated under the financial accounts of King's Cross
Central Limited Partnership {regardless of interest stake in the company) and therefore they are deemed to be
financially controlled by the Partnership. Therefore 100% of emissions from energy consumption associated with
the energy centre has been accounted for within the report.

Qur reporting period is for the financial year 1* April 2022 to 31* March 2023, reporting ail material GHG emissions
using “Tonnes of CO, equivalent” (1CO»e) as the unit of measurement and reporting energy use in kWh. We have
included the energy and emissions for the buildings owned and cperated (i.c.. those within the financial control
boundary). This includes scope [ natural gas and fuel used by mobile and static plant and scope 2 landlord-obtained
electricity consumed in common areas and by tenants on an unmetered basis as well as electricity consumed by
KCCGP in its own offices. We have also included scope 3, tenants’ eiectricity and all waste. The 46% increase in
scope 3 electricity consumption in FY 2022-23 vs FY2021-22 can be largely attributed to new tenants coming
online.

The results are presented as Location based emissions and Market based emissions, where applicable. Location
based reflect the average emissions intensity of grid supplics (using grid average emissions factors) and Market
based reflects emissions from electricity and gas where companies have opted to procure green energy or invested
in renewable generation. Renewable Gas Guarantees of Origin (RGGO) backed gas consumption is assigned
DEFRA emissions factors for biogas which include values for N2O and CH4 emissions {which are not absorbed
during growth). Note that not all FY22-23 gas consumption is RGGO backed. However. KCCLP intends to

E
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purchase unbundled RGGOs during Q2 2023 to ensure all referrable gas consumed by the Estate during this
reporting period is RGGO backed.

The methodology used to calculate total energy consumption and carbon emissions has been based on invoice and
melered data for the financial years stated. Where data was not available. estimates have been calculated using
historical profiles and details kept in the client's evidence pack.

Energy, tuel and waste consumption has been converted to carbon (kgCO2e) using DEFRA published conversion
factors.

New DEFRA conversion tables are issued in June and cover January to December, due to our financial year covering
two data sets, to maintain consistency this report has used the annual published factors covering the largest reporting
months i.c.. Apr-Dec 2022.

Where previously estimated data has now been replaced with actual. there has been a total emission decrease of
1458 1COze (1%) for FY21/22 in this report compared to the emissions published for FY21/22 last year.

We have selected the most appropriate intensity metric in line with the primary drivers of energy consumption,
where possible. For this report we have selected Gross Internal Area (GIA Sgm) as the most appropriate to achieve

a benchmark.
Energy efficiency action taken.

Development of Strategic and asset level Net Zero Carbon Buildings strategies.

Continued metering upgrade and monthly data analysis.

Engagement with tenants about out of hours usage

The Estate has now reverted back to the CIBSE ventilation guidelines from the Government’s Cavid
ventilation guidance. Reducing the heating and cocling demand from using recirculated air and not 100%
fresh.

* & =

ENVIRONMENT

The Partnership aims to deliver industry leading sustainable performance across environmental. social and
govemance deliverables for both the Estate and the surrounding areas. The continued improvement in sustainable
performance is a critical factor in ensuring long term success for the Estate and its delivery is integrated across all

site activities and projects.

To maintain performance and support the delivery of sustainable initiatives, the Kings Cross Estale’s team,
suppaorted by IS014001 accreditation, deliver exemplar performance in ¢state management. King’s Cross continues
to divert 100% of waste from landfill and maximise recycling rates.

The Estate continues fto maintain its Carbon Neutral status whilst implementing a Net Zero Strategy. The
combination of 100% renewable energy, efficient buildings and offsetting of both embodied and operational carbon
means that our carbon impact is neutral. Our ongoing energy efficiency programme and piloting of new energy
management technology. alongside proposed measures to decarbonise the district heat network both play akey role

in delivering a net zero future.

order of the board
J'LG (lewes

SIR DANVID CLEMENTI

Chairman
for and on behalf of King’s Cross Central General Partner Limited

1t July 2023
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The General Partner, King's Cross Central General Partner Limited (“KCCGP™), presents its report and the
audited financial statements of the Group and the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2023,

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

The Group generated a consolidated loss of £76.7 million (2022: £243.93 million profit) {page 12). Consolidated
gross assets increased to £3.76 million at the year-end (2022: £3.59 million). Consolidated net assets amounted to
£2.0 hillion (2022: £2.10 billion) (page 13).

GOING CONCERN

The General Partner has considered the cash requirements of the Partnership for at least 12 months from the date
of approval of the financial statements. In this forecast the General Partner has taken account of the risks that the
Partnership faces (as outlined in the Risks and Uncertainties section above) and modelled a severe but plausible
downside scepario - including a reduction in and delay to receipt of residential sales proceeds and ne further
refinancing surphuses realised. all whilst progressing the remaining development programme in line with original
assumptions in respect of the Partnership’s cashflows, including impact on loan covenants. The results of this
forecast indicate that. in that scenario. the Partnership wouid continue to be able to meet its obligations as they
fall due and that there is sufficient headroom on the financial covenants to withstand significant income and value
adjustments. Consequently. the General Partner considers that the Partnership is well placed to manage its
business risks successfully despite the current economic climate.

On 18th August 2022, the Group successfully completed a new. single loan facility of ¢ £1bn which is secured by
a number of investment assets on the King’s Cross estate. The initial loan term is 2 years (extendable up to §
years at the borrower’s option only) with a capped all-in interest rate of 4.1% up to 22 April 2024 and 5.85% from
23 April to 22 October 2024.

The Partnership retains the remaining [nitial Committed Advances (ICAs) (not repayable until December 2027)
and undrawn bank facilities are available, as described in note 15.

The General Partner therefore considers the Partnership will be able to settle its liabilities as they fall due for at
Jeast 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements and that it is appropriate to prepare these
financial statements on a going concern basis.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

The directors of the General Partner have confirmed. as far as they are aware, that there is no relevant audit
information of which the auditor is unaware. The directors of the General Partner have also confirmed that they
have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken in order to make themselves aware of any refevant audit
information and to establish that this has been communicated to the auditor.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF THE AUDITOR

Pursuant 1o Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed 1o be reappointed and KPMG LLP
will therefore coniinue in office.

By order of the board

10 (e

SIR DAVID CLEMENTI

Chairman

for and on behalf of King’'s Cross Central General Partner Limited
4 Stable Street. London. N{C 4AB

11 July 2023
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STATEMENT OF GENERAL PARTNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
STRATEGIC REPORT, THE GENERAL PARTNER’S REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report. the General Partner's Report and the group
and qualifying partnership financial statements in accordance with applicable law regulations.

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 require the General Partner to prepare group and qualifving
partnership financial statements for cach financial year in accondunce with Part 15 and Chapter [ of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Under that law the General Partner has clected to prepare both the group and the qualifying
partnership financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice). including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of freland.

Under company law the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the qualifying partnership and of the profit or
loss of the group for that period. In preparing each of the group and the qualifying partnership financial statements,
the General Partner is required lo:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:

»  make judgements and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent;

+ state whether they have been prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards. including FRS 102
The Financial Reporting Standard applicabic in the UK and Republic of Ireland;

« assess the Qualifying Partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable.
matters related to going concern; and

¢ use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Qualitying Parnership
or 1o cease operations. or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Qualifying Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Qualifying Partnership and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applied to Qualifying Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. They are
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them (o safeguard the assets of the Qualifying Partnership and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE PARTNERS OF KING'S CROSS CENTRAL
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of King's Cross Central Limited Partnership (“the Qualifying
Partnership™) for the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise the group and the parent partnership’s statements
of financial position, the group’s statement of comprehensive income, the group and the parent partnership’s
statements of changes in partners’ accounts, the group and the parent partnership s statements of cash flows and
related notes. including the accounting policies in note 1.

Int our opinion the financial statemenits:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Qualifying Partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of the
group’s loss for the vear then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards. inciuding FRS 102 The Financiaf
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland, and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to Qualifying
Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (*ISAs (UKY") and
applicable law. Qur responsibilities are described below. We have fulfiiled our ethical responsibiiities under, and
are independent of the Qualifying Partnership in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC
Ethicat Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for
our opinion.

Going concern

The General Partner has prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the Qualifying Partaership or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Qualifying
Partnership’s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a
year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period™).

In our evaluation of the General Partner's conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Qualifying
Partnership’s business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Qualifying Partnership’s financial
resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period.

Our coenclusions based on this work:

*  we consider that the General Partner’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate:

« we have not identified, and concur with the General Partner’s assessment that there is not, a material
uncertainty related to events or conditions that. individually or collectively. may cast significant doubt on the
Qualifying Partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However. as we cannot predict ail future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonabie at the time they were made. the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Qualifying Pannership will continue in operation.
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LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud
To identify risks of material misstatement due 1o fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could
indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Qur risk assessment

procedures included:

* Enquiring of General Partner as to the Qualifying Partnership’s high-level policies and procedures to prevent
and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

Reading minutes of Partners meetings.

Using analytical procedures to identify any usual or unexpected relationships.
s Considering performance targets and incentives for management.
We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of traud
thnuvughout the audit

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures (o address the risk of management override of controls,
in particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk
of bias in accounting ¢stimates and judgements such as investment property valuation and the carrying amount of

inventory.
We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because the Qualifying
Partnership’s income primarily arises from operating lease contracts with fixed. or highly predictable, periodic

payments.
We also performed procedures including:

+ Identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries 10 supporting
documentation. These included entries with specific or no description, those posted by specific users and

post-closing journal entries.
»  Assessing significant accounting estimates for bias.

Our procedutes to detect fraud in the investment property valuations included:

*  The use of our specialist valuers to challenge the methods used in the valuation;
=  Obtaining both confirmatory and non-confirmatory evidence to assess of the key inputs into the valuations.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of !aws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the General
Partner (as required by auditing standards) and discussed with the General Partner the policies and procedures

regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of
non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly. the Qualifying Partnership ts subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements
including financial reporting legislation and taxation legislation. We assessed the extent of compliance with these
laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.
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Secondly, the Qualifying Partnership is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of
non-compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial staiements, for instance
through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such
an effect: landlord and tenant legislation property laws and building legislation. recognising the nature of the
Qualifying Partnership’s activities.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the General Partner and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence. if any. Therefore, if a
breach of aperational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence. an audit will not
detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audil to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements. even though we have properfy planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example. the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards identify it.

In addition. as with any audit. there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud. as these may involve
collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance
or fraud and cannot be expected to deteet non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Strategic report and general partner’s report

The General Partner is responsible for the strategic report and the general partner’s repornt. Qur opinion on the
financiai statements does not cover those reports and we do hot express an audit opinion or. except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibilily is to read the strategic report and the general partner’s report and, in doing so. consider whether,
based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

. we have not identified material misstatements in those reports;

. in our opinion the information given in the strategic report and the general partner’s report for the financial
vear is consistent with the financial statements; and

. in our opinion those reports has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to Qualifying Partnerships we are required to report to you if. in our
opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept. or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

* the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects,
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General Partner’s responsibilities

As explained more fully in the their statement set out on page 8. the General Partner is responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view: such internal
control as they determine is necessary lo cnable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error: assessing the Qualifying Partnership's ability to continue as a going
concern. disclesing, as applicable. matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Qualifying Partnership or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but 10 do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are io obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonabie
assurance is a high level of assurance. but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if. individually or in aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at

www. frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whem we owe our respoasibilities

This report is made solely to the Qualifying Partnership’s members. as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Qualifying Partnership’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and lor no other purpose. To the tullest exient permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Qualifying Partnership and its members,
as a body. for cur audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

e

Richard Kelly (Senior Statutory Auditor)
JSor and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

15 Canada Sguare
Landon
El4 5GL

1tduly. 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note Year ended Year ended
3t March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £0060
Rental income 120.884 116.777
Property overheads (5.623) (3,667)
Revenue from trading property 7.130 27.781
Other revenue 51,898 42.461
Cost of sales (66,337) (66,490}
GROSS PROFIT 107.952 116,862
Administrative expenses 2 (18,389) (17,570
Other income 1.079 1,043
OPERATING PROFIT 90.642 100.335
Revaluation of investment propertics j&e6 (112474) 176.041
Profit on disposat of investment properties - 5.973
Fair value movement of financial instruments 4223 2,637
Finance income 1.925 149
Finance costs 4 (61,031) (41,209)
(LOSSYPROFIT FOR THE YEAR {(76.715) 243.926
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ltems that may be reclussified 1o profit or loss
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 17 (1.202) 2.651
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSSYINCOME (77.917) 246.577
(Loss)/Profit attributable to:
Partners of the Partnership i7 (76.514) 243,966
Minority interests (201) (40)
Total (loss)profit for the year {76.715) 243926
Total comprehensive (loss)/income atiributable to:
Partners of the Partnership (77.716) 246,617
Minority interests 200 (40
Total comprehensive (loss)/income (77.917) 246,577

The notes set out on pages 18 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2023

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment property

Investment property in the course of development

Fixed assets
Investments
Other financial assets

Receivables due in more than one year

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventory

Trade & other receivabies
Cash at bank

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Payments on account

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

Initial Committed Advances ([CAs}
Other financial liabilitics

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

PARTNERS' ACCOUNTS
Capital accounts
Limited Partners’ Contribution
Current accounts
Hedging reserve

PARTNERS’ FUNDS

Minority interest

Note

N La

S~

1!
12

13

16

17

I7

31 March 2023
£000 £000
2,743 364
359,621
3.103.185
6,034
606
32,796
16,150
3.158,771
216.652
219.295
61,305
597,252
3,756,023
101,773
60,118
39461
201,352
[.170
65887
1,469,206
1,536,263
1737615
2.018.408
10
267,015
1.752.712
2,019,737
(1,32%)
2,018,408

T—————

The notes set out on pages 18 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
These financial statements on pages 12 to 36 were approved and authorised for issue by the General Partner on [ | July 2023.

_,,)__Q Clove -

SIR DAVID CLEMENTI

31 March 2022

£000 £000
2,893,038
213397
3.106.455
5421
210
2,753
15.607
3.130,426
139,864
161,594
155,207
456,665
3,587,091
105,720
341,723
23,042
470,485
21,659
64,198
934,423
1,020,280
1,490.765
2,096,126
10
267,015
1,829.226
1,202
2097453
(1.127)
2,096 326

——————

Chairman. for and on behalf of King's Cross Central General Partner Limited. Registered in England No. 06387691
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PARTNERSHIP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2023

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
[nvestment property

[nvestment property in the course of development

Fixed asscts
Investments
Investment in subsidiaries

Receivables due in more than one vear

Other financial assets

CURRENT ASSETS
[nventory

Trade & other receivables
Cash at bank

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Payments on account

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

{nitial Committed Advances {[CAs)
Other financial liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

PARTNERS' ACCOUNTS
Capital accounts
Limited Partners’ Contribution
Current accounts
Hedging reserve

PARTNERS’ FUNDS

Note

Ln

R %N

I

13

16

17

17

3§ March 2023
£000 £000
1.083.474
10.371
1.093.845
2.814
606
876.853
16,150
12,578
2.002.846
28.772
67.304
100,994
197.070
2,199,916
113.584
5.924
119,508
918
65,887
494,629
561434
680,942
1.518.974
10
267.015
1.251.949
1.518.574

———

The notes set out on pages 18 to 36 form part of these financial statements.

31 March 2022
£000

1,124,409
8.700

£000

1,133,109

1.830
210
833.856
15,607
6

1.984.618

32.032
63.384
108.298

79.992
189,590
5716

21.531
64.198
269.220

10
267.0135
§.290.464
596

203.714

2.188.332

275,298

354.949

630.247

1.558.085

1.558.085

s —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS’ ACCOUNTS
as at 31 March 2023

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000
Partners’ Accounts at the: heginning of the yeur 2,097,453 1.850,836
Net profit auributable 1o Partners during the year (76.514) 243,966
Change in fair value of hedging instruments (1.203) 2.651
Partners™ Accounts at the end of the year 2.012.736 2.097.453
Minority interests (1.328) (1.127

2,018.408 2.096,326

The notes set out on pages )8 to 36 form part of these financial statements.

PARTNERSHIF STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS® ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£000 £000

Partners™ Accounts at the beginning of the year 1,558.085 1.491.094
Net profit attribusable to Partners during the year (38.515) 64,946
Change in fair value of hedging instruments (596) 2.045
Partners™ Accounts at the end of the year 1,518,974 1.558.085

The notes set out on pages 18 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
as at 31 March 2023

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss)/profit for the year (76.715) 243.926
Adjustments for:
Finance income (1.924) (149)
Finance costs 61.031 41,209
Amortisation of arrangement fees and costs (6.948) 3.166
Depreciation 402 404
Revaluation of investment properties 112,474 (176.041)
Repayment of MKC loan {19,.261) -
Fair value movement of financial instruments (30,640) (2.637)
Profit from disposal of investment properties - (5573)
[ncrease in inventory (76.788) {45.511)
Increase in trade and other receivabies (58.241) {33,142)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (2.283) 8.098
[ncrease/(Decrease) in payments on account and deferred
income (4.048) £7.151
Decrease in provision - (7.990)
(26.226) (201.415)
CASH GENERATED/USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (102,941 42511
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditure on investment property (109.224) {108.001)
Purchase of fixed assets (1.016) (1.897)
Purchase of unlisted investments (396) (210)
Proceeds from disposal of investment property - 3473
Interest received 1.925 149
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING (108.712) (106.486)
ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Drawdowns of loan 1.1539.263 90.585
Loan repayment (880.430) (10.000)
Finance costs (61.031) (45.052)
NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 217.752 35,533
INCREASE/DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6.098 (28.442)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 135.207 183.649
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 161.305 155.207

— e

The notes set out on pages 18 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
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PARTNERSHIP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Y ear ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
CASH FLCOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
et {lossy/protit for the year (38.515) 64.946
Adjustments for:
Finance income (2,962) (1.569)
Finance costs 22,728 18.613
Amortisation of arrangement fees and costs (3.843) 811
Revaluation of investment properties 43,909 (29,119)
Profit from disposal of investment properties - (5.973)
Fair value movement of financial instruments (13,167} 9
[mpairment of inter entity receivable - 14.928
Decrease in inventory 31260 11,726
Decrease in trade and other receivables 16.131 174
Increase in trade and other payables 30,6011 2.377
Decrease in payments on account and deferred income (36.329) £8.956)
Decrease in provision - {7.990)
60,338 (4.987)
CASH GENERATED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 21,823 59959
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditure on investment property (4.646) (21.504)
Additional invesunents (42.997) (65.348)
Purchase of fixed assets (934) (1.830)
Purchase of unlisted investments (396) (210
Proceeds from disposal of investment property - 3.473
Interest received 2.962 1.569
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING (46.061) {83.850)
ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Drawdowns of loan 502.486 14.658
Loan repayment (462.824) (10.000)
Finance costs (22,728) (18936)
NET CASH INFLOWAOUTFLOW) FROM 16.934 (14.278)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (7.304) (38.165)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 108.298 [46.467
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 100,994 108.298

m—

The notes set out on pages 18 te 36 form part of these financial statements.
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(d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Partnership information

The Partnership is a limited partnership registered in England and Wales under the Limited Partnership Act 1907.
The registered office is 4 Stable Street. London. N1C 4AB.

Basis of consolidation

King’s Cross Central Limited Partnership is domiciled in the United Kingdom. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group comprise the Partnership and its subsidiaries, KC (B2&B4) Limited Partnership
(“B2B4"), Metropolitan King’s Cross Limited ("MKC"), King's Cross Estate Services Limited (“KCES"), KC
Green Limited Partnership (*KC Green™) . KC 3&4 PS Limited Partnership (*3/4 PS LP”), KC (SPH) Limited
Partnership (“*KC {SPH) LP"), KC Cadence Limited Partnership (“Cadence™). KC R8 Limited Partnership (“R8
LP"). KC S3 Limited Partnership (“S3 LP™") and KC S4 Limited Partnership (“S4 LP") together the “Group™,

B2B4 and KCES are awned 100% by the Partnership. KC Green. 3/4 PS LP. Cadence, KC (SPH) LP. RS LP,
S3 LP and S4 LP are all 93.99% owned by the Partnership, via the General Partner and MKC is 90% owned, via
the General Partner. All subsidiaries are domiciled in the United Kingdom.

The abave subsidiaries are considered 1o be controlled by the Partnership. Control exists when the General
Partner has the power to govem the financial and operating policies of an entity 50 as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, the Partnership takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable. The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. The accounts of a
subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases.

Statement of Compliance and accounting convention

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
102 (“FRS 102"}, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Iretand. On publishing
the Partnership financial statements here together with the Group financial statements. the Partnership is taking
advantage of the exemption in S408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual income statement.

Basis of preparation

The financial statemenis are presented in £ sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand. on the historical cost basis,
other than the revalueation of investment properties and certain financial instruments.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied to the results, assets, liabilities and cash flows of the
Partnership and Group.

Judgements and sources of estimation and uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires the General Partner to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimaie is revised if the estimate affects only that period. or in the
period of the revision and future periods. if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant are:

Investment properties

Valuatton of investment properties are classified as fair vatue through profit or loss. The Partnership uses external
professional valuers Cushman and Wakefield fo determine the relevant amounts. The primary source of evidence
for property valuations should be recent, comparable market transacticns on an arms- length basis. However, the
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{e)

(H)

valuation of the Partnerships property pertfolio classified as fair value through profit or loss are inherently
subjective, as they are based upon valuer assumptions.

Impairment of inventory

Imventory is held at the lower of costs and Net Realisable Value (NRV}. At the end of each reporting vear the
partnership will perform an impairment review. Judgement is required regarding the recoverability of the
inventory. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include — costs to come. post year end
disposals and expected sales anticipated to be achieved from the asset.

Going concern

As outlined in the General Partner’s report. the General Partner has considered the cash requirements of the
Partnership for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements. In this forecast the
General Partner has taken account of the risks that the Partnership faces (as outlined in the Risks and
Uncertainties section above) and modelled a severe but plausible downside scenario — including a reduction in
and delay to receipt of residential sales proceeds and no further refinancing surpluses realised. all whilst
progressing the remaining development programme in line with original assumptions in respect of the
Partnership’s cashflows, including impact on foan covenants. The resuits of this forecast indicate that, in that
scenario, the Partnership would continue to be able to meet its obligations as they fall due and that there is
sufficient headroom on the financial covenants to withstand significant income and value adjustments.
Consequently, the General Partner considers that the Partnership is well placed to manage its business risks
successfully despite the current economic climate.

On 18th August 2022, the Group successfully completed a new, single loan facility of ¢ £1bn which is secured
by a number of investment assets on the King’s Cross estate. The initial loan term is 2 years {(extendable up to
5 years at the borrower’s option only) with a capped all-in interest rate of 4.1% up to 22 April 2024, This
refinancing has consolidated existing loans and eliminated all existing 2022 and 2023 financing cxpiries on
commercial assets.

The Partnership retains the remaining Initial Committed Advances (ICAs) (not repayable until December 2027)
and undrawn bank facilities are available, as described in note 15.

The General Partner therefore considers the Partnership will be able to settle its liabilities as they fall due for at
least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements and that it is appropriate to prepare these
tinancial statements on a going concern basis,

Investment property in the course of development

Property that is being constructed or developed for fiture use as investment property is classified as investment
property in the course of development. The Partnership adopts the valuation model under FRS102.

All costs directly associated with the purchase and all subsequent capital expenditure on the development are
capitalised.

When it is determined that a plot wili be developed and then sold. the land concerned and associated costs are
transterred to inventory at fair value at the date of transfer. This is deemed 1o be the earlier of a meaningful
commencement of building works or a binding sale agreement.

A disposai of investment property is recognised when the Partnership has transferred the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the buyer and it no longer retains control or has managerial involvement in the
investment property. Any gain or [oss on disposal of an investment property {calculated as the difference between
the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit and loss.

Refer to note 6 for detaiis of measurement of fair value.
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Q)

(k)

M

Investment property

Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both. [nvestment properties are stated at fair value. under FRS102.

An external independent valuer. having an appropriate recognised professional qualification and recent
experience in the location and category of property being valued, values the portfolie cach quarter. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of investment property excludes accrued operating lease income arising from the smoothing of
rental income over the lease term because the Partnership recognises this as a separate asset.

Tangible assers

Tangible assets are stated at cost (or deemed cost) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost includes the original purchase price, costs direcily attributable to bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use, dismantling and restoration costs and borrowing costs capitalised.

Fixtures and fittings are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged to profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets concerned. which is considered to be three
years for all of the Partnership’s fixtures and fittings capitalised to date,

Fixed assets are depreciated over the projected period of their useful lives. The period over which the long-life
piant and machinery is depreciated is between 10-20 years. whilst shorter-term assets are depreciated aver three
years.

Land is not depreciated.
Invesiments

Interests in subsidiaries and unlisted investments are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses within the Partnership’s financial statements. The investments are
assessed for impairment at each reporting date and any impairment losses or reversals of impairment fosses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventory

Inventory is shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs include interest and other finance costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and those necessary to make the sale.

Development costs

Development costs incurred before land is acquired and projects commence are capitalised if it is sufficiently
probable that the project will go ahead. They are initially recognised at cost and then aliocated 10 the project as
inventory or investment property on its commencement. The costs are writien off if the project is no longer
sufficiently probable to proceed or is cancelled.

Other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and then subsequently at amortised cost less
impairment losses (see accounting policy 1{m}).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank cverdrafts.
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(o)
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Impairment

Carrying amounts of the Partnership’s assets are reviewed at cach balance sheet date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists. the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrving amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit and Inss

The recoverable amount of the Partnership's receivables is calculated at the present value of expected future cash
Nows. discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these financial assets). Receivables with a short duration are not discounted. An impairment loss
in respect of a receivable is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and value in use. [n assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset. In respect of other
assets, an impairmer loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amourt.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined. net of depreciation or amortisation. if na impairment loss had been recognised.

Partners* accounts

The Partners’ capital accounts. partners’ contributions. current accounts and the hedging reserve are classified
as equity in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and then subsequently at amortised cost.

Performance Fees. Development Management fees and Asset Management fees are payable to Argent (King’s
Cross) Limited (the “Asset Manager”), based on return on capital and the attainment of specific events
respectively are accrued for when the fees are earned.

Interest-bearing borrowings, derivative financial instruments and cash flow hedges

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less atiributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition. interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the eifective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value immediately in profit or loss. Where derivatives
qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being

hedged.

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability. or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative
financial instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive income. Any ineffectiveness in the hedging
relationship (being the excess of the cumulative change in fair value of the hedging instrument since inception
of the hedge over the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item since inception of the hedge) is

recognised in the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold. terminated or exercised. or the entity discontinues designation of
the hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to oceur. the cumuiative gain or loss
at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs.
If the hedged transaction is no longer expecied to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised
in equity is recognised In the income statement immediately. Hedges are included at valuations obtained from

the counterparty of the hedge
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When the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability measured at
amortised cost changed as a result of interest rate benchmark reform. the Group updated the effective interest
rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by the reform. A change in
the basis for determining the contractual cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if the following
conditions are met:

— the change is necessary as a direct consequence of the reform; and

— the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis —i.e.
the basis immediately before the change.

When changes were made to a financial asset or financial liability in addition to changes to the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows required by interest rate benchmark reform, the Group first updated the
effective interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reftect the change that is required by interest
rate benchmark reform. After that, the Group applied the policies on accounting for modifications to the
additional changes.

Revenue

Rent from investment properties leased under operating leases is recognised in profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Any lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental
income.

Revenue (net of VAT) [rom the sale of properties from inventory is recognised in profit and loss when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the buyer. Revenue for services rendered (such
as construction services and project management fees) is recognised in profit and loss in proportion to the stage
of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to
surveys of work performed. No income is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of
the consideration due or the associated costs.

Other revenue includes amounts receivable from the tenants of the Kings Cross Estate for the maintenance,
administration and servicing of the Estate. Turnover is recognised to the exzent that recoverable expenses have
been occurred. Other revenue also includes the sale of heating and cooling products 10 consurers on the Estate
as well as exported electricity. which is recognised as revenue when control of these services is transferred to
the consumer.

Expenses

Property operating expénses and service costs for service contracts including Performance Fees (see note (o))
are expensed as incurred.

Finance costs

Alt finance costs incurred in relation to investment properties and investment properties in the course of
construction are expensed in the profit and loss. Finance costs incurred in relation to properties held for resale
are capitalised as part of the cost of inventory (see note 1 (j}).

Texation

No provision is made in the financial statements for the liabilities of the partners for income or capital gains
taxes since such liabilities are the responsibility of each partner.
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2 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Operating profit is stated after charging:
Depreciation

Auditor’s remunetation - audit

— other assurance related services

3 STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS

2023
£600

402
223
12

2022
£000

404
174
I

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Partnership had an average of 13 direct employees (2022: 15)

Chairman’s fees

Other payroll costs. including National Insurance

4 FINANCE COSTS

Interest costs
Amortisation of bank arrangement fees
Other finance costs

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

tn

At beginning of the year

Additions

Transfer from investment property in the
course of development (note 6)
Revaluation

At end of the year

2023 2022
£000 £000
140 139
158 221
298 360
2023 2022
£000 £000
48,678 38,216
4,285 2,993
8.068 -
61,031 41,209
Consolidated Partnership
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
2.893.038 2.524 406 1,124,409 1.129.486
7.366 22,702 4,534 9.551
- 245,250 - (49.150)
{156.840) 100.680 (45,469) 34,522
2,743,564 2.893.038 1,083.474 £,124.409
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6 INVESTMENT PROPERTY IN THE Consolidated Partnership

COURSE OF DEVELOPMENT 2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000
At beginning of the year 213.397 327.480 8.700 71,900
Additions 101.858 85.299 111 11,953
Disposals - (12.500) - {12.500)
Transfer to inventory (note 11) - (16.993) - -
Transfer to investment properties (note 5) - {245.250) - 49,150
Transfer to other entities - - - (106.400)
Revaluation 44,366 75.361 1.560 (5.403)
Atend of the year 359.621 213.397 10.371 8.700

The additions during the year represent payments to contractors for construction work undertaken to date and
fees paid to both third-party consultants and the Asset Manager (see note 21).

MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUE

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of investment property was determined by an external. independent property valuer, Cushinan and
Wakeficld. having appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and
category of the property being valued. The independent valuer provides the fair value of the Parmership’s

investment property portfolio every three months.

The fair value measurement for investment property and investment property in the course of development of
£3.103 million (2022: £3.106 miilion) has been categorised as a Level 3 fair vaiue based on the inputs 10 the

vaiuation technique used.

Level 3 fair value
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances 1o the closing balances for Level 3 fair

values:
Investment property
Investment in the course of
property development
£060 £000
Balance at 31 March 2022 2.893.038 213.397
Other movements — additions and transfers 7.366 (21,368)
Changes in fair value (unrealised) (156.340) 167.592
Balance at 31 March 2023 2.743.564 359,621

Faluation technigue ond significant observable inputs:
The following tabie shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment property and
investment property in the course of development. as well as the significant observable inputs used.
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6

INVESTMENT PROPERTY IN THE COURSE OF DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Praoperty type: Faluation Significant observable inputs Inter-relationship between observable
technique: inputs and fair value measurement:
Completed Income Commercial office rent and  The estimated fair value would
properties held for capitalisation retail rental value of £20 to  increase/{decrease) if:
investment L93 psll » expected market rental growth s
Equivalent yields of 3.75% higher/{lower)
to 5%. « yields are lower/(higher).
Investment property  Residual Estimated rental values of  The estimated fair value would
(including land)in  land £20 to £93 psf. increase/(decrease) if:
the course of valuation Equivalent yields of ¢ expected market rental growth is
development 31.75% to 5%. higher/{lower)

o yields are lower/Chigher)

Sensitivity analysis — Investment property

The below sensitivity analysis is based on the completed properties held for investment as at 31 March
2023 of £2,970,565.000. The valuation used within the sensitivity analysis is ditferent to investment
property due to the lease incentive adjustment.

Decrease Increase
Change £000 Change £000
Office ERV - 5% (100.920) + 5% 129,685
Yield on office space +0.25% (161.225) -0.25% 180.560

Sensitivity analysis — Investment property in the course of development
The below sensitivity analysis is based on Investment property still in the course of development {including
associated land) at the valuation at 31 March 2023 of £616,464,000.

Change £000 Change £000

Office ERV ~ 5% {30.838) + 5% 30,807
Yield on office space -0.25% (33.322) + 0.25% 37.333
FIXED ASSETS Consolidated Partnership

2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000
COST
At beginning of the year 12.902 11.005 5.788 3,958
Additions 1.016 1.897 984 1.830
Transfer to subsidiary - - - -
Disposals - - - -
At end of the year 13.918 12.902 6.772 5,788
DEPRECIATION
At beginning of the year (7.481) (7.077) {3.958) (3.958)
During the year {403) (404) - -
Disposals . - . .
At end of the year (7.884) (7.481) (3.958) (3.958)
Net book value at 31 March 6.034 5421 2.814 1.830
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8 INVESTMENT Coensolidated Partnership
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Unlisted equity investment 606 210 606 210
Movement in investment;
Consolidated Partnership
£000 £000
COST
At | April 2022 210 210
Additions 396 196
At 31 March 2023 606 606
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2022 - .
Impairment losses - -
At 31 March 2023 - -
Net book value at 31 March 2023 606 606
Net book value at 31 March 2022 210 210
9 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDARIES Consolidated Partnership
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investment in Subsidiaries - - 876.853 833.856
Partnership
Movement in investment in subsidiaries
2023 2022
£000 £000
At beginning of the year 833.856 662,108
Investment in KC Green Limited Partnership 1.179 7.536
Investment in KC (SPH) Limited Partnership 4,173 3.0
Investment in KC Cadence Limited Partnership (480) 2.967
Investment in KC R8 Limited Partnership 16.959 41,154
Investment in KC 83 Limited Partnership 388 92.822
investment in KC S4 Limited Partnership 20,778 24159
At end of the year 876.853 833.856
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’s Cross
Limited Partnership

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2023 are as follows:

Name of undertaking

KC Green Limited Partnership

KC (B2&B4) Limited Partnership
KC 3&4 PS Limited Partnership
Metropolitan King’s Cross Limited
King's Cross Estate Services Limited

KC (SPH) Limited Partnership
KC Cadence Limited Partnership
KC RS Limited Partnership

KC §3 Limited Partnership

KC S4 Limited Parinership

All subsidiaries are domiciled in England and Wales. All subsidiaries’ registered office is 4 Stable Street, London

N1C 4AB.

RECEIVABLES DUE IN MORE THAN

ONE YEAR

Retentions
Accrued income

At end of the year

Nature of business

Property development
Investment property
Investment property
Energy centre

Estate Management
Services

Property development
Property development
Property development
Property development
Property development

2023 % Held 2022 % Held

Indirect Indirect
99.99 99.99
100.00 100.00
99.99 99.99
90.00 90.00
100.00 100.00
99.99 99.99
99.99 99.99
99.99 99.99
99.99 99.99
99.99 99,99

Consotidated Partnership
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
5.000 5,000 5,000 5.000
11,150 10,607 11,150 10.607
16,150 15.607 16,150 15,607

On 22 April 2021, KCCLP granted a long-term lease of a plot 1o a AR Triangie Property LP. a related party.
Part of the disposal consideration is deferred untit specific contractual conditions are met. Accrued income
recognised as at 31 March 2023 is the minimum payment of £15 million, the amount recognised at year end
represents the tair value of the transaction and the present value of which is £11.135 million (2022: £10.61

million).

Each year uatil the final conditions are met. the income will be increased so that at the anticipated repayment
date in March 2029, the value held in the balance sheet will have accreted to their face value amount
receivable of £15 million. At each reporting period management will reassess the amount receivable.

INVENTORY

At beginning of the year

Additions

Finance costs capitalised

Disposals during the year

Transferred from investment property in
the course of development (note 6)

At end of the year

Consolidated Partnership
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
139.364 77.228 32,032 43,758
83,766 68,157 7.100 12.552
3.382 1,765 - 1
(10,360} (24.279) (10,360} (24,279)
- 16,993 - -
216.652 139.864 28.772 32.032
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As at 31 March 2023, all inventory was held at historic cost, or deemed cost being the fair value at the date of
transfer from investment property. with no provisions. An impairment assessment was carried out. Although
the costs are higher than the Fair Value, the Net Realisable Value, which is calculated on an individual unit
basis rather than on a plot level. is greater than the historic cost and therefore, no impairment was made in the
year. The Fair Value of the inventory, as valued by Cushman and Wakefield. is £212 2 million (2022: £129.6
million}).

TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES Consclidated Partnership
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade receivables 9.132 9,287 5.467 6.297
Escrow deposits and retentions 37.186 20,253 2914 4112
HMRC - Value Added Tax 720 1,869 (759 468
Inter entity receivables - - - 1.688
Other receivables - 2.814 601 1.397
Accrued rental income 163.991 123418 39.081 49,422
211.029 157.641 467.304 63,384
Development costs 8.266 3.953 - -
219,295 161,594 67.304 63.384
Development costs are those capitalised in respect of the St Pancras Hospital project.
TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES Consolidated Partnership
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
CURRENT
Fees payable to the Asset Manager (note 21} 393 15.976 i1 15,298
Inter entity payables - - 78.590 31,015
Other taxation 32 37 32 37
Other payables and accruals 101,348 89.707 34,951 33.642
101.773 105.720 113,584 79.992
NON CURRENT
Fees payable to the Asset Manager {note 20) - 20.136 - 20.136
Other 1.170 1.523 918 1395

1.170 21,659 918 21.531
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INITIAL COMMITTED ADVANCES YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(CONSQLIDATED AND PARTNERSHIP)

Total

£000
Opening at | April 2021 62,552
Imerest 1.646
Batance at 31 March 2022 64,198
[nterest 1.689
Balance at 31 March 2023 65.887

Each year until maturity. the ICAs’ using the amortised cost method will increase so that at their maturity in
December 2027, the value held in the balance sheet will have accreted o their face value amount payable of £74.5
million. Should the ICAs be redeemed prior to December 2027, the amount payable will be £74.5 million
irrespective of the date of repayment.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Consolidated Partnership
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Other financial assets:
Interest rate cap 32.7% 2.753 12,578 6
Other financial liabilities:
CURRENT
Bank debt {see table below) 60.176 342,920 - 189.893
Less: unamortised loan arrangement fees (38) (598) - (309
Fair value of derivalives - (59N - 6
60.118 341,723 - 189.590
NON-CURRENT
Bank debt (sce table below) 1,482.177 941,398 499.226 270,000
Less: unamortised loan arrangement fees (12.971) (6.373) (4.597) {(178)
Fair value of derivatives - (602) - {602}
1.469.206 934,423 494 629 269.220

Interest rare swaps were disposed of during the period. and are thus not adjusted for in bank debt.

The bank debl and other financial liabilities are all secured over investment property and inventory with a
carrying amount ol £3,320 million (2022: £3.331 million} with the maturities and the amounts available set out

below:

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
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Consolidated Carrying amount Available
All in rate % facility
Property/Plot secured (max) Maturity Date 2023 2022 2023
£000 £0060 £000
CURRENT
Plot §5 2.75% 31/10/2023 60176 27,305 £69.000
Energy Centre (MKC) 2.85% 22/11/2022 - 652 -
Plot R7* 1.65% 22/07/2021 - 115.000 -
Plots DI. G1.I1. K3 & L1/2* 3.19% 26/10/2022 - 75.000 -
PlotQI* 1.85% 26/10/2022 - 19,583 -
Plot S1* 3.40% 08/08/2022 - 95,310 -
| & 2 PS* 2.06% 09/10/2022 - 152,375 -
TOTAL CURRENT 60,176 342,920 69.000
Ceoensolidated Carrying amount Available
All in rate % Maturity facility
Property/Plot secured (max) Date 2023 2022 2023
£000 £000 £000
NON CURRENT
Multi-plot loan facility 4.1% 16/08/2027 1,060.000 - 1.060.000
B3 & Bé 2.60% 20/07/2027 284.550 284,550 284.550
Piot R8 5.15% 2140772026 30.007 - 126.00¢
Plot 83 4.95% 20/07/2026 89.222 11.365 118,000
Piot S4 5.50% 12/07/2024 21.189 - 76,500
Energy Centre (MKC) 2.85% 22/11/2022 {2,791} -
Plot R7* 1.65% 29/06/2023 - 115.000 -
Plot §2* 1.50% 28/05/2023 - 125.000 -
Plot T2* 3.50% 29/11/2023 - 199,945 -
Plot P2* 3.5% 29/11/2023 - 127.733 -
Coal Drops Yard M1 1.5% 30/11/2023 - 30.000 -
Plot 83 2.75% 30/06/2023 - 27.805 69.000

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 1.482,177 941,398 1,734,050
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Partnership only

Property/Plot secured

CURRENT

PlotsDI. G1. 11, K3 & L1/2*
Plot Q1*

Plot S1*

TOTAL CURRENT

NON-CURRENT

Multi-plot loan facility
Plot R7*

Plot $2*

Coal Drops Yard M1

TOTAL NON-CURRENT

All in rate %
{max)

3.19%
1.85%
4.50%

4.1%

1.65%
[.56%
2.29%

Carrying amount Available
Maturity facility
Date 2023 2022 2023
£000 £000 £000
26/10/2022 - 75.000 -
26/10/2022 - 19,583 -
08/08/2022 - 95,310 -
- 189,893 -
16/08/2024 499.226 - 499.266
29/06/2023 - 115.000 -
28/05/2023 - 125,000 -
30/11/2023 - 30.000 -
499,226 270.000 499.266

*These facilities were fully repaid during the 2023 financial year (including Coal Drops Yard M1) and
replaced with a new single toan facility (see note ** below)
**(On 18th August 2022, the Group successfully completed a new. single loan facility (“the Multi-plot loan
facility™) of £1.06bn which is secured by a number of investment assets across the King's Cross estate. This
facility was utilised in the full repayment of those separate facilitics noted above. Although the facility
maturity date is 22 October 2024, the Group has the option (but not an obligation) to extend this facility
under the cxisting terms until 16 August 2027.

PAYMENTS ON ACCOUNT

CURRENT

Deposits received from purchasers of

apartments
Rental Deposits held

Consolidated

2023 2022
£000 £000
33,254 16,141
6,207 6.901

3946l 23,042

Partnership
2023 2022
£000 £000
5.924 5716
5,924 5.716
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17 PARTNERS’ ACCOUNTS YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 (CONSOLIDATED)
KCCGP  KCCPT Total
£000 £000 £000
CAPITAL ACCOUNT
Opening and closing balance - 10 10

LIMITED PARTNER'S CONTRIBUTION

Opening and closing balance 113 266902 267015
CURRENT ACCOUNT

Opening 1 April 2021 1,268 1.583.992 1.585.260
Profit atiributable to the partners for the year 195 243771 243.966
Closing 31 March 2022 1463 1.827.763 1,829.226
Loss attributable to the partners for the year (60}  (76.454) (76,514)
Closing 31 March 2023 1403 1751309 1.752.712

HEDGING RESERVE
Opening 1 April 2021 {

—

) (LA448)  (1.449)

Movement during the year 2 2.649 2.651
Clesing 31 March 2022 1 1.201 1.202
Movement during year {n (1.201) (1.202)
Closing 31 March 2023 - - -
TOTAL PARTNERS' ACCOUNTS AT 3F MARCH 2022 1.577  2.095.876 2.097453

TOTAL PARTNERS’ ACCOUNTS AT 31 MARCH 2023 1.516 2,018.221 2.,019.737
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17.

PARTNERS ACCOUNTS YEARS ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (PARTNERSHIP) {continued)

KCCGP KCCPT Total
£000 £000 £000
CAPITAL ACCOUNT
Opening and closing balance - 14 10
LIMITED PARTNER’S CONTRIBUTION
Opening and closing balance 3 266902 267015
CURRENT ACCOUNT
Opening 1 April 2021 980 1.224,538 1.225518
Profit for the year attributable to the partners 52 64.894 64,946
Closing 31 March 2022 1.032 1.289.432 1.290.464
Loss for the year attributable to partners (31) (38.482) (38.515)
Closing 31 March 2023 1.001 1,250,950 1.251,949
HEDGING RESERVE
- (1.449) {1.449)

Opening 1 April 2021

Movement during the year | 2.044 2.045

Closing 31 March 2022 1 595 596
Movement during the vear (nH (595) {594)

Closing 31 March 2023 -

TOTAL PARTNERS® ACCOUNTS AT 31 MARCH 2022 1.146 1.556,939 1.558,085

TOTAL PARTNERS® ACCOUNTS AT 31 MARCH 2023 L1i4 1,517.860 1.518.974

The Limited Partner’'s Contribution was made primarily by way of the injection of the {and at King’s Cross into
the Partnership; it carries no inlerest and is only repayabie at the option of the General Partner.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{a) Fair values
The fair value of trade and other receivabies is estimated at the present value of future cash flows.

discounted at the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is material.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is estimated at its carrying amount where the cash is
repayable on demand. Where cash is not repayable on demand, then the fair value is estimated at the
fair present value of future cash flows. discounted at the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

The fair value of trade and other payables is cstimated at the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the eifect is material.

Fair value of interest-bearing loans which after initiat recognition is determined For disclosure purposes
only, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows. discounted at
the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management
There are no allowances for bad or doubtful debts within the Group’s trade receivables and all material
amounts have been collected since 31 March 2023.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer, or counterparty. to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Partnership's
receivables from third parties.

The carrying amount of trade receivables and cash held at banks represent the maximum credit exposure.
Accordingly. the maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March 2023 was £380.6 million {2022: £313.6
million). The Group’s cash balance of £161.3 million is deposited with UK clearing banks, all with
credit ratings from Moody’s of BAAZ or above.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they falt due.
other than credit provided by suppliers, all of which were payable (and were paid) within six weeks of
the period end. The Asset Manager (note 20} reports regularly to the General Partner’s Board on the
forecast expenditure and regularly provides detailed cash flow projections to the General Partner’s
Board to ensure that the Partnership does not commit itseif to expenditure in excess of its available
facilities.

The following are the contractual maturities of tinancial liabilities:

Aggregate Maturity by period
31 MARCH 2023 Camrying Contractual [year (to2 2t05 QOvers
amount cash flows orless years years  years
Note £000 £000  £000  £000 £000  £000
Trade and other payables 13 102,943 69.001 101,772 1.170 - -
Secured bank loans* 15 1.542,353 1,542,353 57385 21.18%1.463.779 -

1,645.296 1.599.738 159.157 22.359 1.463.779 -

* This includes the £1.06b multi-plot loan facility. Although the initial term matures on 22 October
2024, the Partnership has the option to extend (without material preconditions) until 16 August 2027,
As a result of the option, the contractual maturity (and associated contractual cashflows) of the facility
is considered to be 16 August 2027.

Apgregate Maturity by period
31 MARCH 2022 Carrying Contractual lyear 1102 205 Over$s
amount cash flows oriess years years years
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 €000  £000
Trade and other payables i3 127,644 127.644 106,653 20.417 574 -

Secured bank loans and other 13& 715 1.307.360  1.700.267 380.717 714.500 &05.050 -
financial liabilities

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
Interest rate swaps (1.202) (1.202) - {1.202) - -

[.433.802 1,826,709 487.370 733.715 605.624 -
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20

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest risk
The interest rates incurred on the Partnership’s loans are disclosed in note [4 and no interest is payable

on the ICAs.

The Partnership lias interest rare swaps to Fx. and caps limit. the cost of the projected borrowing on the
secured term loans (note 13). A hedging reserve has been included under Partners’ accounts.

() Capital managemen
The Partnership uses a mixture of capital and availabie banking facilities to meet its expenditure

requirements.

€ Sensitivity analysis
For the year ended 31 March 2023 a change in market interest rates would not have materially affected
the Partnership’s result because substantially all of the Partnership borrowings are subject to interest

rate caps.

NET DEBT ANALYSIS
Analysis of changes in net debt:

Borrowings due Borrowings due Subtotal Cash and cash Net debt

within one year after one vear equivalents

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2022 (341.723) (934.423) (1,276,146) 155.207 (1,120,939)
Cash flows (880.480) 1.15%.263 278,783 6.099 284,882
Other non-cash changes 1.162,085 (1.694.046) {531.961) - (531,961)
Balance at 31 March 2023 (60.118) (1.465.206) (1,529,324) 161.305 (1,368,018}

RELATED PARTIES

The Asset Manager is a wholly owned subsidiary of Argent King’s Cross GP LLP ("AKXGP"), the general
partnier of the Argent King’s Cross Limited Partnership (“AKXLP") which is one of the Unitholders in King's
Cross Central Property Trust, and in which the BT Pension Scheme is a significant investor. The fees set out
below have been either paid or are owed 10 the Asset Manager. under the Asset Management Agreement dated
12 March 2009 (as amended). between the Partnership (acting by the General Partner). the Asset Manager and
others. See note 13 for the amounts outstanding at the year end.

During the year. the Partnership paid £47.87m (2022: £32.60m) in fees to the Asset Manager in relation to
Development and Asset Management Fees, Performance Fees, and the Interest on Performance Fees, At the year
end. the Partnership owed £1 1k (2022: £36.1 Im). This balance is disclosed in trade and other payabies {(note 13).

On 22 April 2021. KCCLP granted a long-term lease of the Triangle plot at the north of the King's Cross cstate
to AR Triangle Property LP. a related party by virtue of shared key management personnel. The minimum
payment KCCLP will receive for this disposal is £15 million. At the 31 March 2023, KCCLP has recognised the
present value of this consideration at £11.15 million in accrued income (see note 10).
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22

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Total capital commitments under construction-related contracts at 31 March 2023 were £89.8 million (2022:
£296.6 million).

The Partnership have committed to spend £1.4 million on two unlisied PropTech investments at 31 March 2023
(2022: £1.8m).

OWNERSHIP

The Partnership’s sole Limited Partner is King’s Cross Central Property Trust (“KCCPT™}. a unit trust established
in Jersey. whose voting units are held by Australian Super Property No.3 LLC (71.58%) (2022: 70.0%), Britel
Fund Trustees Limited (23.6%) (2022:23.6%) and Argent King’s Cross Limited Partnership (4.83%) (2022:
6.3%). The Chairman holds non-votingl 53,046 (0.1%) (2022 153.046} units.

The General Partner’s shares arc held in the same proportions as KCCPT's units. Australian Superannuation
holds 71.48% (2022: 70.0%) of the issued share capital of King's Cross Central General Partner Limited
("KCCGP*"). Britel Fund Trustees Limited hoids 23.6% (2022:23.6%). Argent King’s Cross Limited Partnership
holds 4.83% (2022:6.3%) and the Chairman holds 0.1%.

36



